
Please ask for Democratic Services DDI (01362) 656295
e-mail: democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

Website: www.breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMISSION

Date & Time - Thursday, 30th May, 2019 at 10.00 am

Venue - Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee.

Members of the OSC

Mr D. R. R. Oliver (Chairman)
Mrs L.S. Turner (Vice-Chairman)
Mr T. Birt
Mrs H. Bushell
Mr E. Colman
Mr F. Eagle

Mr T. J. Jermy
Mr M. Kiddle-Morris
Mr R.G. Kybird
Mr I. Martin
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr D. Wickerson

Substitute Members
Cllr CR Bowes
Mr H Clarke
Mr P Wilkinson

THIS MEETING WILL BE RECORDED BY THE COUNCIL

Mobile phones and other equipment may also be used to audio record, film, tweet or blog from 
this meeting by an individual Council Member or a member of the public.  No part of the meeting 
room is exempt from public filming etc unless the meeting resolves to go into private session.  
However, the use of images or recordings arising from this is not under the Council’s control.  

Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE
Date: Thursday, 23 May 2019

Public Document Pack

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk
http://www.breckland.gov.uk/


Overview and Scrutiny Commission
30 May 2019

PROTOCOL

Working Style of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission (OSC) and Other 
Scrutiny Bodies

This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted 
by the OSC and other scrutiny bodies such as Scrutiny Task and Finish Groups.

Member Leadership

Members of the OSC will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and will recognise 
that best practice identifies scrutiny as a non-executive Member-led activity. The OSC will expect 
Cabinet members to take prime responsibility for answering their questions about topics which chiefly 
relate to the Council’s activities.

A Constructive Atmosphere

Meetings of the OSC will be constructive and not judgmental. The Commission recognises and 
accepts that effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People 
giving evidence should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack.

Independence 

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party 
groups.

Respect and Trust

Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust.

Consensus

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will work together and, while recognising political 
allegiances, will attempt to achieve consensus and agreed targeted recommendations. There will be 
recognition that the OSC has a primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community.

Openness and Transparency

The OSC’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for 
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Commission’s meetings will explain the discussion and 
debate so that they can be understood by an outside reader.

Impartial and Independent Officer Advice

Officers who advise and support scrutiny will give impartial and independent advice, as officers 
support all members of the Council.

Regular Review

There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it 
is not working effectively.

Programming and Planning 

It is the responsibility of the OSC and the wider non-executive to determine its work programme and 
to allocate specific reviews either through a dedicated task and finish group or to undertake a review 
itself. Before each topic/review is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what 
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to 
see.



Managing Time

The OSC will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of business 
will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses. 

Member/Officer Roles

Executive members will regularly be called to account for the decisions they have made and to 
explain progress in key areas of their portfolio – and in the case of the Council Leader – the Council 
as a whole. Members will be expected to produce and present a brief written account of their 
executive activities and will then be questioned by members of the OSC for a period no longer than 20 
minutes.

Co-optees

“Expert witnesses” may be co-opted onto scrutiny task and finish groups to provide technical 
assistance to the review. Co-optees possess no voting rights.

Substitutes

Substitute members will be so listed on the agenda papers of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. It 
is a member responsibility to alert a substitute in the event that she/he cannot attend a meeting. 



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
30 May 2019

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 6 - 11
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 March 2019.

2. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTES 
To receive apologies for absence and to note substitute Members in 
attendance.

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) 

 

4. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.

5. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire 
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member 
has a disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the 
Localism Act 2011.  Members are also required to withdraw from the 
meeting room as stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

6. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
To note the names of any non-members or public speakers wishing to 
address the meeting.

7. COMMUNITY ASSET VALUE POLICY 
To receive a verbal presentation by the Community and Environmental 
Services Manager, Steve James.

8. Q4 2018-19 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 12 - 46
Report of Deputy Leader & Executive Member for Governance, Councillor 
Paul Claussen.

9. OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK (STANDING ITEM) 
To receive an update from representatives on Outside Bodies.

10. SCRUTINY CALL-INS (STANDING ITEM) 
To note whether any decisions have been called-in for scrutiny.



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
30 May 2019

Page(s)
herewith

11. COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION (STANDING ITEM) 
To consider any references.

12. WORK PROGRAMME 47 - 51
(a) A copy of the Commission’s work programme is attached.  The 

Commission is asked to agree any additions, deletions or 
amendments to the programme as appropriate.

(b) Member Issues:  In accordance with the Commission’s protocol for 
member leadership, which states that members of the Commission 
will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and 
in the questioning of witnesses, members are invited to put forward 
items for selection for future review.

A copy of the Key Decision Plan is attached for Members’ information.

13. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements for the next meeting to be held on 11 July 2019, 
at 10.00am in the Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION

Held on Tuesday, 19 March 2019 at 2.00 pm in the
Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

PRESENT
Councillor E. Gould (Chairman)
Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou
Mrs T. Hewett
Mr T. J. Jermy
Mr A.P. Joel

Mr R.G. Kybird
Mrs S.M. Matthews
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr R. R. Richmond
Mr P. S. Wilkinson (Substitute Member)

Also Present
Mr S.G. Bambridge
Mr S. H. Chapman-Allen
Mr P. R. W. Darby

Mr P.J. Hewett
Mrs L.S. Turner

In Attendance
Jon Berry
Mark Dally

- Head of Development Management
- Director of Regulatory Services (Capita)

Anna Graves - Chief Executive
Stephen Ottewell - National Director Capita Planning & 

Building Control
Rob Walker - Executive Director Place
Simon Wood - Director of Planning & Building Control
Teresa Smith - Democratic Services Team Leader

Action By
20/19 MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January 2019 were confirmed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

21/19 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTES 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brame, Crawford 
and Oliver.  Councillor Peter Wilkinson was in attendance as substitute.

22/19 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (IF ANY) 

None.

23/19 URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

24/19 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

None.

25/19 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 

Councillors Bambridge, Darby, Hewett and Turner were in attendance.

6

Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
19 March 2019

2

Action By
26/19 CAPITA CONTRACT REVIEW 

The Director of Regulatory Services (Capita), Mark Dally introduced 
himself together with colleagues Stephen Ottewell National Director of 
Planning and Building Control (Capita), Simon Wood Partnership 
Director (Capita Breckland), and Jon Berry Head of Development 
Management (Capita Breckland); and gave Members a detailed 
presentation on the current Capita Breckland partnership.

Mr Dally explained to Members how the decisions he had made as a 
Director at the end of 2018 had over stretched the team in Breckland 
and did not deliver the service the planning authority had been used to.  
He had been called in to meet with the Strategic Partnership Board to 
present a service plan that would deliver and sustain improvements 
which would be under the leadership of Simon Wood.  He explained 
how through recruitment he had strengthened the team and had 
listened to Members concerns about the need to understand planning 
issues locally.  He believed that under the leadership of Simon the team 
would feel empowered and led to deliver the core business that was 
required. 

The Partnership Director, Simon Wood explained his ethos would be to 
communicate directly with Members, Parish Groups and individuals to 
enhance the planning process within Breckland. He had recently held 
an Agents Forum which feedback received had been positive.  He went 
on to say how he was keen to ensure he worked closely with his staff to 
create a stable business by ensuring all staff were developed through 
learning and development.  He added that the Key Performance 
indicators so far had been reported as good but was keen to develop 
the indicators further to improve performance to the best of their ability.  

The National Director of Planning and Building Control, Stephen 
Ottewell informed Members of his responsibility on the development of 
a business plan that would be presented and endorsed at the Strategic 
Board in April.  He re-iterated how it was crucial that changes were 
made to the existing Key Performance Indicators to raise the bar of 
service delivery and to ensure they reflected the key service delivered.  
As a result Members were informed that a new customer satisfaction 
indicator would be added to capture feedback.  Mr Ottewell explained 
the Business Plan and due to the effect of market forces, it was not 
anticipated that the growth threshold of 130% of the Annual Core 
Charge would be achieved as originally expected.  In response a 
revised profit shared mechanism to allow for growth was explained.  
Members were informed how the planning services were linked to the 
Corporate Plan ensuring that appropriate support was given to the 
planning team to deliver services.  

Councillor Nairn was pleased to hear improvements had been made in 
the management structure, and asked what plans were in place for 
resilience to ensure that the issues caused at the end of 2018 would not 
happen again.
Mr Dally said there had been an increase in management at a local 
level.  To mitigate the risk, both Mr Berry and Mr Wood lived within 
Breckland area.  A review of pay and conditions had been undertaken 
to motivate staff, as well as regular one-to-one meetings and team 
meetings being held to develop staff through their careers.  Members 

7



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
19 March 2019

3

Action By
heard how one member of staff had just been supported through his 
degree.  Mr Wood added it was not about pay and benefits, but 
empowering staff to have confidence in their own decision making 
judgements and wanted to ensure staff were included on decisions in 
how the service would be delivered going forward.   Mr Ottewell said 
there were two vacancies outstanding within the team but was confident 
that they would be filled shortly.

The Chairman had heard that staff had a one-month notice period and 
asked if this would continue.  Mr Ottewell said notice periods had been 
highlighted and were currently engaging with staff about changes to 
terms and conditions.
Councillor Jermy highlighted that when the contract had been reviewed 
in the past, staff retention had been mentioned, but at the time staff felt 
there should be more flexibility in the working patterns and asked if this 
had been improved.  Members heard how there had been a recent 
review of the terms and conditions for staff with an annual pay review 
seeing a level increase over and above market value.  Capita were 
keen to invest in their staff and by holding performance reviews could 
see where staff required training, and provide support where required.  
In addition, staff had the ability to work remotely due to the excellent 
service provided by Breckland IT which was working well.

Councillor Jermy was pleased to hear that IT had improved as that had 
also been raised as a major issue in the past.  He went onto ask about 
how the Key Performance Indicators should be reported on a quarterly 
basis and what was being done to allow Councillors to scrutinise 
performance.  Mr Ottewell clarified that he was working with council 
colleagues and on the basis that the changes to the Key Performance 
Indicators were accepted by the Strategic Growth Board, and committed 
to report back to Members to explain the performance indicators in 
more detail.

Councillor Wilkinson asked what strategic plan was in place to ensure 
that major developments (referring to Attleborough and Thetford) were 
delivered to agreed timescales.  Mr Wood said significant resource was 
required to facilitate such large scale developments and whilst there 
was no exact strategic plan discussions were in place on resourcing to 
ensure a successful delivery.

The Chairman asked what could be done to ensure the villages also 
delivered what they had committed to building.  Mr Wood was aware of 
work being undertaken through the housing strategy team to ensure 
sites were developed.  However, he asked to be contacted if Members 
were aware of sites not being developed in order to have conversations 
with developers and local parishes.

Councillor Dimoglou offered thanks to Mr Dally for being open and 
honest and admitting failings and was pleased to hear the presentation 
and how it concentrated on developing the team.  He said there had 
been talk of a validation checklist for developers when submitting an 
application, and asked if this was in place.  Mr Berry said a review was 
underway with the current validation checklist and it was hoped a new 
checklist would be in place in June.  In addition, a credited agents 
scheme would be implemented to give agents an incentive that 
validation would be carried out within a premium time if the checks had 

Stephen 
Ottewell 

8



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
19 March 2019

4

Action By
been carried out correctly.

Councillor Dimoglou went on to mention that he had seen an increase 
of permissions going through with permitted development rights 
removed, and asked for a reason for this.  It was explained that 
permitted development rights should only be removed where there were 
exceptional circumstances necessary to make a development 
acceptable.  However, he would raise the issue with Officers, to ensure 
the permitted development rights were only removed where absolutely 
necessary.

Councillor T Hewett felt the presentation was geared to developers and 
agents, but it was the rural parish residents that were concerned about 
inappropriate development and it was critical that residents had 
reassurance their voices were heard.  She went onto ask for more 
information on the profit share mechanism.  Mr Wood re-iterated that 
everyone was a customer and encouraged the recognition that 
Members had within the planning system, and would endeavour to meet 
residents when he could.
Mr Ottewell explained the £1.5m quoted was a projected figure. A 
primary reason for this would be that Breckland would become a hub for 
joint venture partnerships however there have been dramatic changes 
in markets and local government support.  There was a new mechanism 
in place and it was felt that a profit share on a 50:50 basis was 
achievable over time  an example given was the Salford Partnership 
which had been developed and manged.  Mr Dally added the service 
had to be stable and Breckland would be in a good place to provide 
strong references on how the new model was working in order to help 
win further contracts.

Councillor Kybird felt the pre-application advice could be weak and 
asked if there were plans in place to charge a fee for that advice and if 
the advice would be available for public record.   Mr Wood agreed and 
added a paper would be presented to the Strategic Board to look at the 
pre-application process which had been supported at the agents’ forum.  
There were a number of benefits including the reduction of enquiries, 
and the scale of charges to be considered.   It was agreed it would also 
ensure that pre-application consultations were consistent.

Councillor Matthews asked what Officers had done to improve the 
service.  Mr Dally said he had been held accountable by both Members 
and the Chief Executive.  As a result Officers had received examples 
with copies of correspondence to show the level of pain that had been 
endured during the difficult period.  However, as a result of the hard 
work that has been put in, it was thought there could be an opportunity 
to attend the Local Government Association conference to show how 
the service had been turned around and what could be delivered at a 
District level.

Councillor P Hewett asked where Capita felt there had been disconnect 
between the number of customers frustrated with the service and the 
Key Performance Indicators showing customer service.  Mr Wood 
explained there were two elements - delivering the formal planning 
service with efficiency and quality, and the ability to engage with 
customers as much as possible.  He was aware there had been issues 
that needed to be addressed but since the 1 January 2019 there had 

9



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
19 March 2019

5

Action By
been a reduction in the number of formal complaints received.  He 
encouraged a direct approach in order to deal with issues.  Mr Dally 
added they had listened and heard voices of parishes and agents and a 
valid point had been previously raised about the residents and could 
see the perception that had been given.  Mr Wood added a new web-
based customer satisfaction survey would be introduced to allow 
anyone to provide their experience on the planning service would be 
used as a benchmark.

Councillor P Hewett asked what work had been done to show which 
Key Performance Indicators reflected what had failed in order to set 
achievable targets.  Mr Ottewell said the changes would increase the 
minimum level below which penalties apply and new ones would be set 
for things that were deemed important; all of which would be agreed at 
the Strategic Growth Board. 

Councillor P Hewett asked what differences there had been between 
the Breckland and Barnet operations. Mr Dally confirmed the issues at 
Barnet had been different to Breckland and whilst the detail was private 
he assured Members that no matters related to the services provided at 
Breckland.  

Councillor Joel asked what would be the future of the team currently 
responsible for delivering the Local Plan.  Mr Wood informed Members 
that as soon as the Local Plan team received the inspectors report there 
would be a need for a review which would commence quickly.  

Councillor Richmond was pleased the first phase of the Thetford SUE 
was being developed and went on to ask what the timescales would be 
for when the next reserved matters would be delivered.  Mr Wood said 
there had been a lot of work going on behind the scenes to discharge 
conditions before further work could be developed, but agreed to 
provide an update for Members on where the major project was at. 

Councillor Darby asked that when an application be submitted with 
changes, they were highlighted on the Officers report to make it clear.  
Mr Berry confirmed this had been raised and further information would 
be added to the Officers report.

The Chairman also requested further detail be added to the Planning 
Portal, as at times there could be a number of ‘consultee comments’ 
and make it difficult when searching for specific points.  Mr Wood 
agreed and would ensure his team would label issues with more detail 
on the portal.

Councillor Jermy asked for assurance on how valid the savings figures 
were.  The Executive Director for Place confirmed that when the 
contract commenced there would be a saving of £123,000 per annum 
which had been removed from the revenue budget, delivering a saving 
to the Council of £1.3m to date.  Mr Ottewell added that as the contract 
progressed through delivering the Hub partnership model, the 
benchmarked figures presented were based on projections of delivery 
elsewhere.

Councillor Turner asked that consideration be given on the vision of 
housing options for older people going forward and had been involved 

Simon 
Wood 

10



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
19 March 2019

6

Action By
in discussions with developers that were very keen on delivering a 
similar approach to the Danish model.  Mr Wood was happy to speak 
with the developers to hear of the innovative ideas as both the Local 
Plan and National Planning Policy Framework required the Authority to 
address all sectors of housing.  

The Chairman asked for further information on how it was decided to 
give an extension of time to applications for Parish Councils.  Mr Berry 
said they tried to accommodate requests from Parish Councils for 
extensions of time where it fell within the statutory deadline period.  
However it had been raised at the recent Agents Forum to be clear on 
best practice and would therefore tighten up the process on agreeing an 
extension of time.

Councillor T Hewett asked what support would be given to Members 
with the delivery of the Local Plan to Parishes.  Mr Wood understood 
there should be more engagement with Members and would be happy 
to discuss the Local Plan with Members and Parish Councils going 
forward.

Councillor P Hewett suggested a specific Key Performance Indicator be 
added that would link precisely the consultation between Members and 
Capita regarding time, frequency and duration which would alleviate a 
‘them and us’ situation.  Officers would consider the suggestion.

The Chairman thanked the team for their detailed report that assured 
Members and was confident with the team in place would achieve what 
they had set out to achieve.

The Deputy Leader expressed his thanks to the Chairman as it was her 
last meeting as Chairman and Councillor.  He said since being 
Chairman of the Commission she had taken it from strength to strength 
ensuring robust and challenging questions were asked of Members and 
partner agencies.  He thanked her for her hard work over the past years 
and wished her well for the future. 

27/19 NEXT MEETING 

The arrangements for the meeting on 30 May 2019 at 10:00am in the 
Anglia Room, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham were noted.

The meeting closed at 3.50 pm

CHAIRMAN

11



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager People and Public Protection, Deputy leader & 
Executive Member for  Governance

To: Overview and Scrutiny Commission – 30th May 2019
Cabinet – 25th June 2019 

Author: Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation and Performance Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 4 2018/19 

Purpose: To provide members of the commission with an overview of the 
Council’s performance for the period 1st January 2019 – 31st March 
2019. 

1. BACKGROUND

The Quarter 4 2018-19 Performance Report detailed in Appendix A aims to provide 
Members, businesses and residents with an overview of how the Council is performing 
against a number of key strategic indicators. These indicators include the delivery of 
frontline services, financial performance and progress made towards achieving the 
overarching aims an objectives of the Council as set out in the Corporate Plan.   

In addition the covering report will highlight areas of improved and high performance 
and also where performance is challenging. Where this is the case the report will 
summarise what officers are doing to address this.  

1.2 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

Recommendation

1)  Members of the commission are asked to note the content of the report

12

Agenda Item 8



1.3 Performance is reported using the RAG system with green demonstrating where an 
indicator is on or above target, amber where the indicator is below target but showing 
an upward trend and red where an indicator is below target. 

Of the 18 measurable indicators the below table shows an overall improvement in 
performance across the Council when compared with Quarter 3 18/19. (Please note 
the increase in the overall number of PIs account for some PIs being reported Half 
Yearly as well as more data available for some PIs that were unable to be reported 
on last Quarter)

Indicator Quarter 4 18/19 Quarter 3 18/19
3 (20%) 3 (20%)
2 (6.5%) 6 (40%)

13 (73.5%) 6 (40%)

2.0 AREAS OF SUCCESS

2.1 There has been a significant improvement in the number of major planning applications 
being determined within timescale with 76% being agreed within 13 weeks or an 
agreed extension for quarter 4 against 53.33% in quarter 3. It should be noted that 
although the Breckland target is for 90% of major applications to be determined within 
this timescale, the national target is in fact 50%. Future reports will be amended to 
reflect the national standards and the contractual arrangements which exist between 
the Council and Capita. 

2.2 The amount of office time lost through sickness continues to decrease with 3% of all 
available officer time being lost to sickness in Q4 against 5.3% when compared to the 
same period 12 months ago. This equates to in excess of 2600 hours of increased 
office capacity for the quarter which would otherwise have been lost through sickness; 
this can be attributed to the ongoing wellbeing initiatives being led by HR in addition to 
the newly implemented HR workforce strategy which also is reflected within this report 
under the # of working days lost to sickness which sits at the lowest figure in this 
financial year at 1.88 days per FTE.

13



2.3 The Council’s ability to respond to complaints and Freedom of Information enquires 
within the required timescales continues to improve with FOIs in particular being some 
of the best response rates in the Country. There were 58 formal complaints registered 
within Q4 with 55 (95%) being responded to within 15 working days against 53% being 
responded to within the same period 12 months ago. Of the 57 FOI requests made in 
Q4, 53 (93%) were responded to within 20 working days, an increase of 16% when 
compared with the same period 12 months ago. In addition it is positive to note that 
there has been a 65% decrease in the total number of FOIs received in this period 
when compared with 17/18; this can be attributed to the increased levels of information 
displayed on the Council’s website as well as its improved signposting to such 
information.  

2.4 The number of visitors to the Council’s website continues to increase with in excess of 
20,000 new visits recorded for Q4 when compared with the same period 12 months 
ago. This reinforces the Council’s digital agenda and recent investment in the 
Customer and Digital Access Strategies. Interestingly and of note, performance within 
the Customer Contact Centre also continues to improve with Q4 returning an average 
call wait time of 140 seconds against 267 seconds for the same period 12 months ago 
whilst the number of customers using webchat also continues to increase. This 
demonstrates that the Council’s digital offer is complementing and supporting more 
traditional means of customer contact. 

2.5 Housing Benefit LA error rate has lowered further in a positive way since last quarter 
and we are continuing to see the error rate reduce and this figure remains on target for 
the year. Last year’s Q4 error rate was at 0.26% so this score fares even better in 
comparison. This is a very positive figure as the implications of this figure breaching 
0.48% would result in 40% subsidy payable by the council for all of the LA official error 
and Admin delay overpayments.

2.6 A total of £86,237 in grants were spent in Q4, going to 13 different community 
organisations and projects. The reason that Q4 is so high in comparison to other 
quarters is that it reflects the trend in when groups are more likely to apply for funding 
– groups tend to put applications together over winter, ahead of delivering projects 
through the summer. The total is comprised of 10 small grants and 3 large grants.

2.7 Another area of high performance within the organisation is the Breckland Lottery as a 
further £10,709 was raised for good causes through the lottery in Q4. Current 
annualised projections for Lottery revenue is at £65k with good cause revenue at 
£39,219, it is important to highlight this is the first year of this scheme, there was 69k 
raised, and 40 went to good causes so this is a really good start considering its new 
for the year, especially considering the start-up costs being so low at around 3k.

3.0 AREAS REQUIRING IMPROVEMENT 

3.1     There has been an increase in missed collections this quarter which is mainly due to 
vehicle breakdowns, however an action plan has been requested from the contractor 
to improve performance in this area and this will be looked at as priority as this figure 
is usually a high performing area to report. Contextually this is important to note that 
this quarter’s figures illustrate that only 233 collections were missed out of a total of 
798,000.

3.2       

14



The end of year financial figures for Environmental Health Training and Consultancy 
are slightly under original target showing that income did not reach the levels projected, 
however it is important to note expenditure costs were also down. Operating bottom 
line financial figures are in line with projections but inline and better than in year 
forecast which was around £80k

This indicator will be changed for the next reporting cycle to also illustrate the bottom 
line operating financial figures and not just income in order to get a full overview of the 
services financial performance. It is also worth highlighting that the service is working 
with the councils internal marketing team to target products and businesses to support 
Breckland businesses going forward as per the business case.

3.3      The performance measure for Empty properties back in use sits at 0 for this quarter 
however It is important to highlight that this figure is derived from the number of empty 
properties in the district at the start of the Quarter compared to the number at the end, 
as there were more at the end of the quarter this means the figure sits at 0, this does 
not specifically highlight the direct performance of the council and is therefore more of 
a data indicator at present. Going forward for Q1 19/20 the housing service will report 
on the direct intervention figures and number of properties the service has directly 
brought back into use.

 

4.0 Additional Points

4.1 None

5.0 Options

5.1 Note the content of the report

5.2 Do nothing

6.0 Expected Benefits

6.1 The Corporate Improvement and Performance Team will use the content of this report 
to identify areas of improvement. 

7.0 Implications 

7.1      Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

7.2   Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of             
the author that there are no implications. 

7.3      Constitutional and Legal

7.4   Constitutional and Legal issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the 
author that there are no implications. 

7.5      Contracts

7.6 Contracts issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the report author that 
there are no implications. 

7.7      Wards/Communities affected

15



7.8 No wards or communities are affected. 

7.9    Acronyms

7.10 None

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ross Bangs – Corporate Innovation & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 07870835233
Email: ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ross bangs – Corporate Innovation & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Quarter 4 Performance Report

16

file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:ross.bangs@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


1

Q4 2018/19 BDC Overview and Scrutiny Report

Indicator Value of Grants Trend Chart
The total amount of grant 
money that has been 
awarded via the 
community development 
team  

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £86,237.00

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

Data Only 

 

Higher is better as we look to award more 
grants

A total of £86,237 in grants were spent in Q4, going to 13 
different community organisations and projects. The reason 
that Q4 is so high in comparison to other quarters is that it 
reflects the trend in when groups are more likely to apply for 
funding – groups tend to put applications together over 
winter, ahead of delivering projects through the summer. The 
total is comprised of 10 small grants and 3 large grants. 

17



2

Indicator Breckland Lottery (Value awarded) Trend Chart
The overall amount of 
money that has been 
awarded via the Breckland 
lottery

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £10,709.00

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

Data Only 

 

Higher is better as we look to award more via 
the Breckland Lottery

A further £10,709 was raised for good causes through the lottery in 
Q4. Current annualised projections for good cause revenue are at 
£39,219

18



3

Indicator % of FOI requests responded to within the time limit Trend Chart
Of the FOI's responded to 
in the month, the 
percentage of ones that 
were responded to within 
the statutory 20 day 
timescale  

Same time last year

Num responded in 
timescale

Number due in month Value

Q4 2017/18 128 164 78%

Current Performance Q4

Num responded in 
timescale

Number due in month Value

Q4 2018/19 53 57 93%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

100%

 

A higher % is better as we look to answer more 
FOI's in the 20 day timescale

The FOI response rate is currently at the highest we have ever seen at 
93% at the end of Q4, this is a positive figure which also reflects the 
streamlining and re-design of the feedback loop, this is also a result 
of improved communication and engagement between the teams and 
the Statutory information officer in how information is retrieved and 
communicated to requestors.

19



4

Indicator % of complaints responded to within agreed timescales Trend Chart
Of the complaints 
responded to in the 
period, the percentage of 
ones that were responded 
to within the agreed 
timescale  

Same time last year

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints Closed in 
Period

Value

Q4 2017/18 26 49 53.06%

Current Performance Q4

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints Closed in 
Period

Value

Q4 2018/19 55 58 94.83%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

90%

 

Higher is better as we look to respond to all 
complaints within the agreed timescales by the 
authority

Similarly, to the FOI response rates, complaint response rates sit at 
their best figures due to the re-design and streamlining of corporate 
feedback processes within the CIP team. For this quarter in particular 
the month of March shows the best figures with 100% of complaints 
responded to within the 15 day deadline we set out in our policy, this 
shows that we as a council are responsive to feedback from residents 
and they are receiving responses and resolutions as quickly as 
possible.

20



5

Indicator Number of Vexatious Customer Registrations Trend Chart
This Performance measure 
monitors the number of 
customers who have been 
made vexatious in the time 
period.
The vexatious application 
is managed via the 
Corporate Complaints 
team and the Legal team.

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 0

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

 N/A There have been no vexatious customer registrations in Q421



6

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart
% of calls that are 
answered by an 
appropriate member of 
staff from the total of calls 
offered  

Same time last year

# Calls Abandoned # Calls Received Value

Q4 2017/18 4,326 34,867 12.41%

Current Performance Q4

# Calls Abandoned # Calls Received Value

Q4 2018/19 3,487 30,507 11.43%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

10.1%

 

A lower % is better as we look to answer more 
calls  

Customers average wait time for the contact centre for Q4 was around 140 
seconds which is a very good figure and lower than Q4 of last year, the 
abandonment rate for calls is dropping as staffing levels remained at a good 
level for Q4, some of the length of these phone calls can be attributed to the 
contact centre staff encouraging residents to use more digital approach, there 
is also a degree of education and training for some residents that staff will be 
doing on these phone calls. The forecast for Q1 19/20 is currently positive 
and this will continue to be monitored as staffing levels and other external 
factors come into play.

Whilst performance in the contact centre is improving the figure for calls 
abandoned still sits slightly above target, over the next Month the Corporate 
improvement and performance team will be working within the contact centre 
(listening in on calls, analysing processes etc) to understand the service better 
and look at areas that can be re-designed or improved to ensure call 
efficiency and abandonment rates improve.

We have also seen another good month for webchat – highest number of 
customers so far (325) and completed 92.40% of chats. The contact centre 
aims to implement customer satisfaction surveys during April to gather 
customer feedback.

22



7

Indicator New website visitors Trend Chart
Number of new visitors to 
the Council's website

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 75,705

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 96,050

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

Data Only 

 

A higher number is better as we look to get 
more people accessing the website

The number of visitors to our website hit its highest figures yet 
during Q4, January saw a spike of 36,297 website hits which can be 
attributed to more residents choosing to use online, due to office 
opening hours and possibly weather conditions but as this figure has 
continued to climb through the year, it is likely that this increase is 
due to our digital agenda and channel shift work, encouraging 
residents to interact with us in more digital ways, in particular when 
website hits for “My Breckland” and “Pay online” has seen continued 
growth in this quarter.

In comparison to other local authorities in the East of England, the 
latest data shows the average number of website visitors in the 
quarter was 116,627, the minimum was 40,205 which was Maldon 
District Council, the highest in comparison was 187,454 hits and this 
was for Norwich City Council. It’s important to note our councils 
website is still being embedded and we anticipate numbers to 
continue to climb as the website becomes more established and 
more residents are engaging digital.

23



8

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart
% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected  

Same time last year

Recycle/Compost 
Tonnage

Total Waste Collected 
Tonnage

Value

Q4 2017/18 3955.20 12212.16 32.24%

Current Performance Q4

Recycle/Compost 
Tonnage

Total Waste Collected 
Tonnage

Value

Q4 2018/19 3582.35 12134.70 29.71%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

33.23%

 

A higher % is better as we look to recycle or 
compost more waste 

We are still waiting for final disposal tonnages however we have seen 
an increase in the amount of recycling contamination at the MRF 
which had led to a reduction in recycling rates. (This PI sits slightly 
under target but is still showing as green as this is not past the 
threshold which would highlight it as underperforming, these 
thresholds are based on % and are designed to allow for slight room 
to manoeuvre due to the nature of the figures.

24



9

Indicator Flytipping - tonnes Trend Chart
Estimated tonnage of 
Waste collected from fly 
tipping 

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 60.00 tonnes

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 90.69 tonnes

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the fly 
tipping tonnage collected

An increase in the number of flytips collected this quarter has led to 
an increase in overall fly tipping tonnages, there are no specific 
concerns at this stage but as more flytips are being reported an 
increase in tonnage will naturally be seen. The service has just 
recruited a fly tipping enforcement officer so we will expect to see 
enforcement action figures and the ability to report on these actions 
for the Q1 reporting cycle. National benchmarking shows the average 
number of fly tipping enforcement actions taken by councils across 
the East of England is around 91 enforcement actions per Quarter, so 
targets will be set in line with this figure once the enforcement officer 
is embedded within the service.

25



10

Indicator Missed Waste Collections Trend Chart
Number of missed waste 
collections per 100,000 
households

 

Same time last year

Average Number of 
missed collections each 
month for Q4

Num of collections per 
100,000

Value

Q4 2017/18 38.667 2.667 14

Current Performance Q4

Average Number of 
missed collections each 
month for Q4

Num of collections per 
100,000

Value

Q4 2018/19 77.667 2.657 29

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

15

 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed 

There has been an increase in missed collections this quarter mainly 
due to vehicle breakdowns. An action plan has been requested from 
the contractor to improve performance in this area and this will be 
looked at as priority as this figure is usually a high performing area. 
Contextually this is important to note that this quarter’s figures 
illustrate that only 233 collections were missed out of a total of 
798,000

26



11

Indicator Number of Incidents of Fly Tipping Trend Chart
Number of reported fly 
tipping incidents collected 
by Serco

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 212

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 362

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

Data Only 

 

N/A There has been an increase in the number of fly tips collected this 
month. New online reporting functions have contributed to the rise in 
reporting but have also improved collection times. In comparison 
national data shows Breckland council just below average for fly 
tipping incidents, the average for the quarter was at 389 incidents, 
Maldon Council reported 130 fly tipping incidents while Norwich City 
Council reported the maximum number of incidents in the Quarter at 
1270 incidents of fly tipping. 

27



12

Indicator Number of Garden waste subscribers Trend Chart
Total # of subscribers to 
garden waste for the 
month  

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 22,823

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 21,025

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

Data Only 

 

Higher is better as we look to have as many 
subscribers as possible

Number of subscribers remains stable and finishes Q4 in a positive 
figure, further work, including targeted marketing, will continue into 
19/20 to encourage more subscribers.

28



13

Indicator Gross income generated by EHT&C Trend Chart
The amount of gross 
income generated by the 
Environmental Health, 
Training and consultancy 
commercial trading arm  

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £85,500.00

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

£105,000.00

 

Higher is better as we look to generate more 
income from our environmental health training 
and consultancy department

The end of year figures are slightly under original target showing that 
income did not reach the levels projected, however it is important to 
note expenditure costs were also down. Operating bottom line 
financial figures are in line with projections but inline and better than 
in year forecast which was around £80k

This indicator will be changed for the next reporting cycle to also 
illustrate the bottom line operating financial figures and not just 
income in order to get a full overview of the services financial 
performance. It is also worth highlighting that the service is working 
with the councils internal marketing team to target products and 
businesses to support Breckland businesses going forward as per the 
business case.

29



14

Indicator Food Businesses Rated 'Generally Satisfactory' or Above Trend Chart
The % of rateable food 
businesses with a rating of 
3 (generally satisfactory), 4 
(good) or 5 (very good) as 
a % of the total number of 
rateable businesses  

Same time last year

Number rated 3,4 or 5 Total number of food 
businesses

Value

Q4 2017/18 1,351 1,400 96.5%

Current Performance Q4

Number rated 3,4 or 5 Total number of food 
businesses

Value

Q4 2018/19 1,443 1,480 97.5%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

95%

 

Higher is better as we look to have more 
businesses with a good or above food rating

As of Q4 there are only 37 Food businesses with a Rating of 2 
or lower, with all of these cases intervention action will be 
taking place and our services will be offered including our 
Environmental health and Food safety consultancy services. 
For Businesses rated 0, an intervention will be received within 
1 month, businesses rated 1 or 2 will receive an intervention 
within 2 months.

30



15

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart
% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers)
Target is 10% which has 
been benchmarked

 

Same time last year

Number of Leavers Number of Employees Value

Q4 2017/18 4 286 1.4%

Current Performance Q4

Number of Leavers Number of Employees Value

Q4 2018/19 11 294 3.7%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

4.3%

 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff Quarter 4 is often a seasonal low for leavers and Q4 of this year has 
been no exception with the lowest number of leavers for the year 
(Q3=17, Q2=14, Q1=15), however there were only 4 leavers for this 
period last year in comparison to 11 for this period, going by 
nationally compared data the average turnover rate for local 
authorities in England is 4.3%, so we still remain below this figure. 
On a wider scale the highest turnover rate seen for local authorities is 
at 6% whilst the lowest is 1.5%. For additional context just over 50% 
of these leavers were from Anglia revenues partnership and not 
employed directly by Breckland.

31



16

Indicator # of Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart
Number of working days 
lost per full time 
equivalent

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 3.39

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 1.88

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

2.01

 

Lower is better as we look to have less time 
lost to sickness per full time equivalent

It is pleasing to report that working days lost to sickness is 
performing well with 1.88 days lost to sickness per FTE, this is 
greatly improved when compared to 3.39 days per FTE for Q4 at the 
same time last year. When comparing our yearly sickness rate 
externally Breckland council sits at around the average sickness rates 
for all other UK local authorities.

32



17

Indicator % of time lost to sickness Trend Chart
% of time lost in hours due 
to sickness

 

Same time last year

Working Hours Lost Working Hours 
Available

Value

Q4 2017/18 6,512.67 122,057.55 5.34%

Current Performance Q4

Working Hours Lost Working Hours 
Available

Value

Q4 2018/19 3,892.79 128,629.56 3.03%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to lose as little time 
to sickness as possible.

Time lost to sickness sits in line with the sickness rates as mentioned 
above, this figure continues to improve as we see sickness rates 
decrease towards the end of 18/19

Indicator # of Cases Prevented from Homelessness Trend Chart

33



18

Number of cases 
prevented from 
homelessness  

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 121

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2018/19 N/A N/A 45

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Higher is better as we look to prevent as many 
cases from homelessness as possible.

The service has seen an increase of demand into the Housing service due to 
the Homelessness reduction act resulting in more people presenting as 
homelessness due to the criteria having changed with the implementation of 
the act. The result of the act has also increased the complexity of cases as 
well as the time officers need to spend on each case, this results in less time 
to prevent and many people going straight into the relief duty which is not 
currently reported on.

Reduction also due to legislation changes - Prevention period has increased 
to a 56 days period and therefore allows longer prevention time for the 
Housing Options team. If unable to prevent they will move into Relief duty 
which is a key indicator and going forward the service will report on this.

The housing service is also working with other housing local authority teams 
in the area to look at the demands and resource implications the HRA has had 
on other local authorities and ways the service can cope with demand as well 
as establishing FTE Requirements based on population size. 

This figure is reporting on the Q3 return as the data the service can provide 
often runs a quarter in arrears, this is due to many cases still continuing into 
the new quarter and a full assessment of each case needs to be undertaken by 
the officer to establish the type of prevention (if any)

34



19

Indicator Empty Properties - Back in Use Trend Chart
Number of empty 
properties brought back 
into use through direct 
intervention by the council 
i.e. Restore Grant. 
 
Amount should be 
cumulative for the year 

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 0

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

25

 

More is better as we look to reduce the 
number of empty properties in the District

It is important to note this figure is derived from the number of 
empty properties in the district at the start of the Quarter compared 
to the number at the end, as there were more at the end of the 
quarter this is not a positive figure, this does not specifically 
highlight the direct performance of the council and is therefore more 
of a data indicator at present. Going forward the housing service will 
report on the direct intervention figures and number of properties 
the service has directly brought back into use.

Indicator Breckland Empty Commercial Properties (Not in use) Trend Chart

35



20

Number of NDR Empty 
commercial properties at 
the defined time period 
(No business rates will be 
received on these 
properties whilst vacant)

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 217

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to have as few 
empty commercial properties as we can in 
order to increase the amount of business rates 
collected as well as boost the districts 
economy

Slight increase in the number of empty commercial properties with 
no specific points from ARP or the Commercial Property Team to 
highlight in this report.

Indicator Breckland Empty Homes Trend Chart

36



21

Number of Empty homes 
within the district at the 
defined time period

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 517

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as we look to have as few 
empty homes as possible

There has been a slight increase in the number of empty homes this 
quarter, the housing service are currently looking at ways to bring as 
many of these empty homes back into use as possible, this will work 
in line with the homelessness reduction act and is currently being 
looked at as a wider review of empty homes.

37



22

Indicator Local Unemployment Levels Trend Chart
Figures from external 
sources to provide context 
on the District

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 2,805

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 3,615

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

 Data Only

 

Lower is better as it provides context of an 
economically active District

It is important to note that due to universal credit implementation, 
more people are classed into this band hence why the numbers have 
increased, the inward investment team is working to establish a new 
method which clearly informs on the number of total claimants and 
clearly highlight which of those are on Job Seekers allowance, this 
will be in place for Q1 19/20

38



23

Indicator % of Major applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart
% determined within 13 
weeks (or with agreed 
extension) 
 
Contractual target is 50%  

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 94.44%

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 76.67%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

90%

 

Higher is better as we look to get more 
applications agreed in timescale

6 of 8 applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension, 
the contractual target is 50% or more hence why this figure still 
shows as green.

39



24

Indicator % of Minor applications determined within 8 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart
% determined within 8 
weeks (or with agreed 
extension) 

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A 99.49%

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A 91.34%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

  

70%

 

Higher is better as we look to get more 
applications agreed in timescale

56 of 58 applications determined within 8 weeks or agreed extension 
of time

40



25

 

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart
Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment Amount of 
benefits overpaid divided 
by benefits paid (% of 
overall expenditure)   

Same time last year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expenditure

Value

Q4 2017/18 80,161.94 30,531,372.32 0.26%

Current Performance Q4

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expenditure

Value

Q4 2018/19 53,545.81 28,620,376.18 0.19%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

0.35%

 

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%)  

Housing Benefit LA error rate has lowered further in a positive way 
since last quarter and we are continuing to see the error rate reduce 
and this figure remains on target for the year. Last year’s Q4 error 
rate was at 0.26% so this score fares even better in comparison. This 
is a very positive figure as the implications of this figure breaching 
0.48% would result in 40% subsidy payable by the council for all of 
the LA official error and Admin delay overpayments•

41



26

Indicator Net Business Rates receipts Trend Chart
Actual revenue collected in 
respect of Business Rates 
against budget 

 

Same time last year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A £30716188

Current Performance Q4

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £33655722

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

£3046254

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

The amount of net business rates collected remains above budget 
targets and continues to perform well.

42



27

Indicator Net Council Tax receipts Trend Chart
Actual revenue collected in 
respect of Council Tax 
against the amount which 
the authority has budgeted  

 

Same time last year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A £68701234

Current Performance Q4

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £73886227

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

£73878018

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible  

The amount of net business rates collected remains above budget 
targets and continues to perform well.

43



28

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart
Target is to achieve 90% 
occupancy level of the 
Council's commercial 
property (investment, non-
operational) assets which 
excludes operational 
assets 
Calculated by total floor 
space let over the total 
lettable space.  

 

Same time last year

Total floor space let 
(sq.ft)

Total lettable space 
(sq.ft.)

Value

Q4 2017/18 565,179.667 637,341 89%

Current Performance Q4

Total floor space let 
(sq.ft)

Total lettable space 
(sq.ft.)

Value

Q4 2018/19 708,258.333 772,416.333 92%

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

98%

 

A higher number is better as we look to rent 
out as much of the commercial property space 
as possible and increase income  

The Commercial Property occupancy remains lower than previously 
reported primarily due to a large Kings Lynn investment asset (ex 
Jaeger unit) remaining void. This one asset represents 7%.  This unit 
has now been let, bringing this figure to 96% for Q1 2019/20. We are 
actively promoting and marketing all of our vacant properties to 
minimise void periods. 

44



29

Indicator Commercial Property Average Yield Trend Chart
This is the net yield across 
the commercial property 
(investment assets)

 

N/A

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

6%

 

A yield (or return on investment) is a 
performance measure of how well capital 
(cash) is employed to allow comparison, in this 
case against the market or individual asset or 
asset groups.
Yields are calculated by dividing the net 
income (i.e. after costs deducted) into the 
capital invested therefore the higher the yield 
the better the performance of the asset.  The 
target is to achieve an average net yield across 
the commercial (investment assets) property 
portfolio. 

Net yield across the commercial property performs above target, 
further details on commercial property income and occupancy are 
covered in their Performance measures respectively.

45



30

Indicator Commercial Property Gross Rental Income Trend Chart
This is the total gross 
rental income that is 
forecast to be achieved 
from the Commercial 
Property assets including 
Riverside and Barnham 
Broom.
 

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2017/18 N/A N/A £2,633,614.00

Current Performance Q4

Numerator Denominator Value

Q4 2018/19 N/A N/A £2,704,220.00

   Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

   

£2,712,763.00

 

Higher is better as we look to increase our 
income from assets

Commercial property occupancy is the key factor to gross rental 
income which is currently at 90% against a target of 98%, occupancy 
and rental income figures are primarily due to the Kings Lynn 
investment asset (ex Jaeger unit) remaining void. This one asset 
represents 7%.  This unit has now been let, so we will see this figure 
increase in Q1 for 19/20. We are actively promoting and marketing 
all of our vacant properties to minimise void periods.

 

46



1

KEY DECISION PLAN

VERSION 05/19

Issued – 
Effective for Period:
 01/05/19 - 30/04/20

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision is likely to be made, to:  
Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE.

Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all key and significant decisions that are likely to be made over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is expected to be made.  .

Key decisions are Executive decisions involving expenditure or savings exceeding 25% of the budget sum approved for a particular service or function, or a decision which 
significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions.
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any 
non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, 
particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Deputy Leader & 
Executive 
Member for 
Corporate 
Strategy and 
Investment

Hybrid Mail - To 
Award a Contract

To award a contract via a procurement exercise for the 
provision of printing, enveloping and mailing of annual, 
ad-hoc billing and other Revenues & benefits documents

This will be an Officer 
Decision

Hybrid Mail - To 
Award a Contract

Executive Director of Strategy & 
Governance – June 2019

Officer Decision

47

A
genda Item

 12

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk


2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Executive 
Member for 
Growth

Kingsfleet 
Sustainable 
Urban Extension 
Thetford - 
Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure 
Fund

A report to consider the acceptance of HIF funding to 
support the delivery of the Kingsfleet Sustainable Urban 
Extension, Thetford

See report Kingsfleet 
Sustainable Urban 
Extension Thetford 
- Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure Fund

Council 18 Jul 2019

Executive 
Member for 
Finance and 
Delivery

NNDR 
Discretionary 
relief

To consider a new policy for discretionary Business 
Rates (NNDR) relief for new businesses locating to the 
Breckland area

See report NNDR 
Discretionary relief

Cabinet 19 Mar 2019

Final Decision maker - Council 16 May 
2019

Executive 
Member for 
Growth

Adoption of the 
Breckland Local 
Plan

To adopt the Local Plan following the conclusion of the 
Examination in Public.

See report Adoption of the 
Breckland Local 
Plan

Council 18 Jul 2019

48



3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Executive 
Member for 
Governance

Polling Districts, 
Polling Places & 
Polling Stations 
Review

Formal review in accordance with the Representation of 
the People Act 1983 & the Review of Polling Districts, 
Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 
2006.

See report Polling Districts, 
Polling Places & 
Polling Stations 
Review

Council 31 Oct 2019

Executive 
Member for 
Finance and 
Delivery

Budget Setting, 
medium term 
plan and capital 
strategy 2020-21

To consider the capital and revenue budget estimates 
and proposed Council Tax, the financial medium term 
plan and the capital strategy

See report Budget Setting, 
medium term plan 
and capital strategy 
2020-21

Council 27 Feb 2020

Executive 
Member for 
Finance and 
Delivery

Council Tax 
Setting 2020-21

To set the amounts of council Tax applicable for 2020-
21 for each valuation band and in each part of the 
district

See report Council Tax Setting 
2020-21

Council 27 Feb 2020

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE.

49



4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk 

50

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk


Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19
This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes

19 March 2019 Capita - Contract review Rob Walker/Gordon Bambridge To review the capita contract

30 May 2019 QTR 4 2018-2019 Performance Overview Corporate Improvement Team To provide an update on Council Performance for the period 01/01/2019-31/03/2019
Community Asset Value Policy Steve James To receive an update

11 July 2019 Review Fly-tipping To receive a progress report
Breckland Bridge Extension Paul Hewett / Ralph Burton Authorise the extension to Breckland Bridge partnership

26 September 2019

07 November 2019

19 December 2019

06 February 2019

19 March 2020

20 April 2020

51


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Q4 2018-19 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 4 2018-19 Performance Overview Report

	12 Work Programme
	Work Programme 2019-20


